



## LAWS & GUIDANCE

**(/WEB/20160113033446/HTTPS://WWW.ED.GOV/POLICY/LANDING.JHTML?SRC=LN) / ELEMENTARY & SECONDARY EDUCATION**

# Key Policy Letters Signed by the Education Secretary or Deputy Secretary

Dear Colleagues:

Today President Obama signed into law the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA), which reauthorizes the Elementary and Secondary Education Act of 1965 (ESEA). This new bipartisan law, which will replace the No Child Left Behind Act of 2001, is good news for our nation's schools and students. The ESSA includes many of the key reforms we have called on Congress to enact since the beginning of the Administration and that many of you have pioneered in recent years on your own and in implementing ESEA flexibility. It helps to ensure educational opportunity for all students by:

- Holding *all* students to high academic standards that prepare them for success in college and careers.
- Requiring that, when students fall behind, steps are taken to help them, and their schools, improve, with a particular focus on the lowest-performing five percent of Title I schools, high schools with low graduation rates, and schools where subgroups, including students from low-income families, English learners, students with disabilities, and students of color, are falling behind.
- Empowering State and local decision makers to continue to refine their own systems for school improvement.
- Continuing to require annual, comparable statewide assessments, so that parents and educators have the information they need to make sure children are making progress, while encouraging review and elimination of unnecessary tests.
- Establishing as part of the ESEA programs to:
  - Provide more children with access to high-quality preschool – similar to the current Preschool Development Grants program;
  - Spur innovations developed by educators at the local level and evidence-based strategies for high-need students – similar to the current Investing in Innovation (i3) grant program;
  - Encourage States and districts to put in place new supports for teachers and school leaders, including increases in compensation that are based in part on student learning and other measures;
  - Support innovative and evidence-based teacher and leader recruitment, preparation, and development;
  - Support comprehensive wraparound services from early learning to college and career in high-need communities – similar to the current Promise Neighborhoods grant program;
  - Replicate and expand high-performing charter schools for high-need students – similar to the current High-Quality Public Charter School Replication and Expansion grants program; and

- Provide continued support for magnet schools designed to improve diversity and increase academic achievement.
- Protecting students from low-income families and students of color from being taught at disproportionate rates by ineffective teachers – building on existing State Plans to Ensure Equitable Access to Excellent Educators.

We are all taking a moment today to celebrate this momentous step forward and recognize that in the weeks and months to come there is much work to be done. We will work closely with you and your staffs to ensure a smooth transition to this new law. We will work together to develop solutions to the many important policy and implementation decisions that will arise, and will work swiftly to provide answers to the many questions we know you will have. You can find the latest information at [www.ed.gov/essa](http://www.ed.gov/essa) (<https://web.archive.org/web/20160113033446/http://www.ed.gov/essa>), and can ask questions through your contact in our Office of State Support, or by e-mailing us at [essa.questions@ed.gov](mailto:essa.questions@ed.gov) (<https://web.archive.org/web/20160113033446/mailto:essa.questions@ed.gov>).

Congress and President Obama have worked together to enact a law that prioritizes both excellence and equity. It is now up to all of us to ensure that it lives up to its promise for America's students and for our future. We are excited to continue building strong Federal-State partnerships under this new law to increase educational opportunity and improve outcomes for all students.

Sincerely,

/s/  
Arne Duncan  
Secretary of Education

/s/  
John B. King, Jr.  
Principal Senior Advisor, Delegated Duties of the Deputy Secretary

 Printable view

Last Modified: 12/11/2015  
([/web/20160113033446/https://www.ed.gov/print/policy/elsec/guid/secletter/151210.html](https://web/20160113033446/https://www.ed.gov/print/policy/elsec/guid/secletter/151210.html))

## How Do I Find...

- Student loans, forgiveness ([/web/20160113033446/https://www.ed.gov/fund/grants-college.html?src=rn](https://web/20160113033446/https://www.ed.gov/fund/grants-college.html?src=rn))
  - College accreditation (<https://web.archive.org/web/20160113033446/http://www.ed.gov/accreditation?src=rn>)
  - Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA) (<https://web.archive.org/web/20160113033446/http://www.ed.gov/essa?src=rn>)
  - FERPA ([/web/20160113033446/https://www.ed.gov/policy/gen/guid/fpco/ferpa/index.html?src=rn](https://web/20160113033446/https://www.ed.gov/policy/gen/guid/fpco/ferpa/index.html?src=rn))
  - FAFSA (<https://web.archive.org/web/20160113033446/http://fafsa.ed.gov/>)
  - 2015 Budget Proposal (<https://web.archive.org/web/20160113033446/http://www.ed.gov/budget15?src=rn>)
- More > ([/web/20160113033446/https://www.ed.gov/about/top-tasks.html?src=rn](https://web/20160113033446/https://www.ed.gov/about/top-tasks.html?src=rn))

## Information About...

- Transforming Teaching (<https://web.archive.org/web/20160113033446/http://www.ed.gov/teaching?src=rn>)
- Family and Community Engagement (<https://web.archive.org/web/20160113033446/http://www.ed.gov/family-and-community-engagement?src=rn>)
- Early Learning (<https://web.archive.org/web/20160113033446/http://www.ed.gov/early-learning?src=rn>)
- K-12 Reforms (<https://web.archive.org/web/20160113033446/http://www.ed.gov/k-12reforms?src=rn>)

## Related Topics



### Office of Elementary and Secondary Education

 ([/web/20160113033446/https://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ose/index.html?src=rt](https://web.archive.org/web/20160113033446/https://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ose/index.html?src=rt)) 

### Office of Innovation and Improvement

 ([/web/20160113033446/https://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/oii/index.html?src=rt](https://web.archive.org/web/20160113033446/https://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/oii/index.html?src=rt)) 

### Key Policy Letters

 ([/web/20160113033446/https://www.ed.gov/policy/gen/guid/secletter/index.html?src=rt](https://web.archive.org/web/20160113033446/https://www.ed.gov/policy/gen/guid/secletter/index.html?src=rt)) 



---

## Student Loans

([/web/20160113033446/https://www.ed.gov/fund/grants-college.html?src=ft](https://web.archive.org/web/20160113033446/https://www.ed.gov/fund/grants-college.html?src=ft))

Repaying Loans (<https://web.archive.org/web/20160113033446/http://studentaid.ed.gov/repay-loans?src=ft>)

Defaulted Loans (<https://web.archive.org/web/20160113033446/http://studentaid.ed.gov/repay-loans/default?src=ft>)

Loan Forgiveness (<https://web.archive.org/web/20160113033446/http://studentaid.ed.gov/repay-loans/forgiveness-cancellation?src=ft>)

Loan Servicers (<https://web.archive.org/web/20160113033446/https://studentaid.ed.gov/repay-loans/understand/servicers?src=ft#who-is-my-loan-servicer>)

## Grants & Programs

([/web/20160113033446/https://www.ed.gov/fund/grants-apply.html?src=ft](https://web.archive.org/web/20160113033446/https://www.ed.gov/fund/grants-apply.html?src=ft))

Apply for Pell Grants (<https://web.archive.org/web/20160113033446/http://www.fafsa.ed.gov/?src=ft>)

Grants Forecast ([/web/20160113033446/https://www.ed.gov/fund/grant/find/edlite-forecast.html?src=ft](https://web.archive.org/web/20160113033446/https://www.ed.gov/fund/grant/find/edlite-forecast.html?src=ft))

Apply for a Grant ([/web/20160113033446/https://www.ed.gov/fund/grant/apply/grantapps/index.html?src=ft](https://web.archive.org/web/20160113033446/https://www.ed.gov/fund/grant/apply/grantapps/index.html?src=ft))

Eligibility for Grants ([/web/20160113033446/https://www.ed.gov/programs/find/elig/index.html?src=ft](https://web.archive.org/web/20160113033446/https://www.ed.gov/programs/find/elig/index.html?src=ft))

## Laws & Guidance

([/web/20160113033446/https://www.ed.gov/policy/?src=ft](https://web.archive.org/web/20160113033446/https://www.ed.gov/policy/?src=ft))

Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA) (<https://web.archive.org/web/20160113033446/http://www.ed.gov/essa?src=ft>)

FERPA ([/web/20160113033446/https://www.ed.gov/policy/gen/guid/fpco/ferpa/index.html?src=ft](https://web.archive.org/web/20160113033446/https://www.ed.gov/policy/gen/guid/fpco/ferpa/index.html?src=ft))

Civil Rights ([/web/20160113033446/https://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr/know.html?src=ft](https://web.archive.org/web/20160113033446/https://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr/know.html?src=ft))

## Data & Research

([/web/20160113033446/https://www.ed.gov/rschstat/?src=ft](https://web.archive.org/web/20160113033446/https://www.ed.gov/rschstat/?src=ft))

Education Statistics (<https://web.archive.org/web/20160113033446/http://nces.ed.gov/?src=ft>)

Postsecondary Education Data (<https://web.archive.org/web/20160113033446/http://nces.ed.gov/ipeds/?src=ft>)

State Education Data (<https://web.archive.org/web/20160113033446/http://eddataexpress.ed.gov/?src=ft>)

Nation's Report Card (<https://web.archive.org/web/20160113033446/http://nces.ed.gov/nationsreportcard/?src=ft>)

What Works Clearinghouse (<https://web.archive.org/web/20160113033446/http://ies.ed.gov/ncee/wwc/?src=ft>)

## About Us

(/web/20160113033446/https://www.ed.gov/about/?src=ft)

Contact Us (/web/20160113033446/https://www.ed.gov/about/contacts/gen/?src=ft)

ED Offices (/web/20160113033446/https://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/?src=ft)

Jobs (https://web.archive.org/web/20160113033446/http://www.ed.gov/jobs/?src=ft)

Press Releases (https://web.archive.org/web/20160113033446/http://www.ed.gov/news/?src=ft)

FAQs (https://web.archive.org/web/20160113033446/https://answers.ed.gov/?src=ft)

Budget, Performance (/web/20160113033446/https://www.ed.gov/about/overview/focus/performance.html?src=ft)

Subscribe to E-Mail Updates

(https://web.archive.org/web/20160113033446/https://public.govdelivery.com/accounts/USED/subscriber/new?topic\_id=USED\_5)




(https://web.archive.org/web/20160113033446/http://www.facebook.com/SecretaryArneDuncan)




(https://web.archive.org/web/20160113033446/http://twitter.com/usedgov)



(https://web.archive.org/web/20160113033446/http://www.youtube.com/user/usedgov)  Sign Up for Email Updates

(https://web.archive.org/web/20160113033446/https://public.govdelivery.com/accounts/USED/subscriber/new?

topic\_id=USED\_5)  (https://web.archive.org/web/20160113033446/http://www.ed.gov/feed)



(https://web.archive.org/web/20160113033446/https://plus.google.com/+usdepartmentofeducation)

More > (https://web.archive.org/web/20160113033446/http://www2.ed.gov/about/overview/focus/social-media.html?src=ft)

---

Notices (/web/20160113033446/https://www.ed.gov/notices/index.html?src=ft)

FOIA (/web/20160113033446/https://www.ed.gov/policy/gen/leg/foia/foiatoc.html?src=ft)

Privacy (/web/20160113033446/https://www.ed.gov/notices/privacy/index.html)

Accessibility (/web/20160113033446/https://www.ed.gov/notices/accessibility/index.html)

Security (/web/20160113033446/https://www.ed.gov/notices/security/index.html?src=ft)

Information quality (/web/20160113033446/https://www.ed.gov/policy/gen/guid/infoqualguide.html?src=ft)

Inspector General (/web/20160113033446/https://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/oig/index.html?src=ft)

Whitehouse.gov (https://web.archive.org/web/20160113033446/http://www.whitehouse.gov/)

USA.gov (https://web.archive.org/web/20160113033446/http://www.usa.gov/)

Benefits.gov (https://web.archive.org/web/20160113033446/http://www.benefits.gov/)

Regulations.gov (https://web.archive.org/web/20160113033446/http://www.regulations.gov/)